Regular Meeting 03-23-21 Page 1 of 6

Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Verde Valley Fire District
Meeting Held March 23, 2021

A Regular Meeting of the Verde Valley Fire District Board of Directors was held on March 23,
2021 at 5:00p.m. in person at Station 31, 2700 E. Godard Road, Cottonwood, Arizona and
electronically (via Zoom) due to COVID-19 restrictions.

Board of Directors:

Ken Bishop, Chairman
Donald Peck, Board Clerk
Coleen Gilboy

Matthew Kaempfe

Robert Brummett

Staff Present:
Danny Johnson, Fire Chief

Lisa Elliott, Administrative Manager

Dustin Chambliss, Battalion Chief

Danny Hinds, Captain

Tucker Thrman, Engineer (via Zoom)

[van Anderson, Firefighter (via Zoom)

Joyce Driscoll, Administrative Assistant (via Zoom)

Others Present: Ashley Dancer (Sunstate Sales Manager), Kia Salters (Sunstate Client Success
Advocate), and others whose names were not shown via Zoom.

CALL TO ORDER - The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Board Chairman Bishop.
ROLL CALL - All members were present; a quorum was present.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG - Those present stood and said the pledge of
allegiance to the American flag.

MOMENT OF SILENCE — A moment of silence for firefighters who have lost their lives.
A moment of silence was observed for the 8 U.S. firefighters who lost their lives in the line of
duty last month.

ORDER OF THE AGENDA - Discussion and consideration of changing the order of the
agenda. No action was taken.

MINUTES - Discussion and consideration of the minutes of a Regular Meeting and
Executive Session held February 23, 2021 and the Special Meetings and Executive Sessions
held March 2, 2021 and March 9, 2021. Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve the
minutes of the Regular Meeting and Executive Session held February 23, 2021 and the Special
Meetings and Executive Sessions held March 2, 2021 and March 9, 2021, Board Member

Brummett seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

CALL TO THE PUBLIC - None.



Regular Megting 03-23-21 Page 20f 6

FINANCIAL REPORTS - Discussion and consideration of the financial report for the
previous month (including ambulance billing). Administrative Manager Elliott reviewed the
written financial reports noting changes to some of reports due to them now being generated
through new financial software:

The District is 67% through the fiscal year.

Total cash in the General Fund at the end of February: $2,078,789.85

Decrease in cash of $384,172 for February.

Positive cash flow of $250,810 for fiscal year to date.

Property Tax Revenues received in February: $60,792.43

Fire District Assistance Tax (FDAT) revenue for February was $7,727.40.

Some of the individual expenditures in February.

Total operating-only expenditures are 3.1% lower than year-to-date allocation.

Total expenditures are 20.92% lower than the year-to-date allocation.

Ambulance collections and call volume.

Wildland deployment billing and revenue; payment received for 12 out of 15
assignments.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve the Financial Report. Board Member
Brummett seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT - A report from the Chairperson on his activities for the
District. He reported that he had a meeting with Chief Johnson.

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS — Reports from the members of the Board on their
activities for the District. No reports.

UNION REPORT - A report from the District representative of the Sedona-Verde Valley
Firefighters Association on current events and activities for the past month. Firefighter
Anderson reported that meet and confer has begun with Chief Johnson. On behalf of the line
personnel, he thanked the Board for the professional process used to select the new fire chief.

CHIEF’S REPORT - A report from the Fire Chief on current events and his recent
activities including, but not limited to: Public relations, meetings and events attended,
incident call volume, specific incidents and training. Chief Johnson reported that he has been
able to meet with most of the Staff. He highlighted the following from his written report:
Meetings he and former Fire Chief Moore attended in February.

Grants update.

An update on human resources items.

An update on the Lexipol project.

That he is researching the civil engineering project.

An update on billing and reimbursements regarding Arizona Public Service (APS).
Social media posts.

Call report.

Vehicle expenses.

Update on disposal of surplus property.

® & & & & & & ¢ & &



Regular Meeting 03-23-21 Page 3 of 6

FIRE INSPECTOR REPORT - A report from the Fire Inspector on current events and
recent activities, including, but not limited to: Public education, fire prevention, meetings
and events attended, training, permits issued/closed and inspections. Chief Johnson,
referencing the Fire Inspector’s report, noted the following:

o Pending projects.

A residential fire which occurred.

Child car seats issued (28) and inspected or re-installed (11).
Permits issued.

Inspections.

BOUNDARY CHANGE - Discussion and possible adoption of Resolution 2021-04
amending the boundaries of Verde Valley Fire District by adding the property addressed
as 1020 E, House Mountain Drive, Cottonwood, Arizona. Chief Johnson introduced the item.
Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve R ion #2021-04 amending th

of Verde Valley Fire District by adding the property addressed as 1020 E. House Mountain
Drive, Cottonwood. Board Member Brummett seconded the motion.

Administrative Manager Elliott explained the boundary change process, noting that once
approved Yavapai County will collect taxes on the annexed property. She also explained the
process for property owners to contract for service and the fees charged. It was noted that the
District still responds to properties outside the District and not under contract, however, they
receive a bill for services. The motion passed unanimously.

CONTRACT - Discussion and possible approval of the contract with Sunstate Technology
Group for Information Technology Services. Fire Chief Johnson stated that an internal audit is
taking place to verify that what is being charged matches with the number of computer units the
District uses. He explained that Sunstate’s attorney is still reviewing an addendum drafted by the
District’s attorney.

Discussion followed regarding the automatic renewal clause in the current contract. It was noted
that the existing contract expires in April and is not automatically renewing, Chief Johnson
explained that Sunstate agreed to extend the current agreement through June so the new contract
could start at the beginning of the next fiscal year. Administrative Manager Elliott read the
termination information from the proposed contract.

Board Member Gilboy noted the substantial increase in the fees and inquired as to who
authorized the additional computers; she noted 38 computers and even more laptops. Chief
Johnson explained that each apparatus has a laptop. He noted that they will be auditing the
hardware to determine where the units are and if there is any opportunity to reduce the number.
Discussion followed regarding where computers are located. Board Member Gilboy stated that it
is a lot of money and she is frustrated by the amount.

Chief Johnson stated that this is IT service as well as the hardware; therefore, if there is a
computer that goes down Sunstate is responsible for replacing it. Administrative Manager Elliott
added that the proposed contract will include the replacement of all computers. Discussion
followed regarding costs that would be outside of the contract and the past instance where a
server needed to be replaced.



Regular Meeting 03-23-21 Page 4 of 6

Administrative Manager Elliott stated that if they find items that can be removed, etc. then
Sunstate will revise the monthly fee accordingly.

Ashley Dancer with Sunstate stated that all the hardware listed in the contract is what is on file
today. She stated that if there are changes in the hardware an amendment can be made anytime
throughout the life of the contract to adjust the cost. Chief Johnson verified that changes can be
made anytime during the contract. Ms. Dancer agreed and stated that they do amendments all the
time.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve the agreement with Sunstate Technology
Group for information technology services with attorney adjustments made by both attorneys.

Board Clerk Peck seconded.

Board Member Gilboy asked that the internal audit be completed and that units be removed if
possible. The motion passed unanimously.

HEALTH INSURANCE - Discussion and possible approval to allow Boards Members to
obtain health, dental and vision insurance through the District’s health insurance pool.
Administrative Manager Elliott stated that the District’s health insurance provider, Kairos,
allows the insurance to be provided to Board Members, with the cost being incurred by the
Board Members. Board Member Gilboy stated that there needs to be some mechanism to ensure
the District does not inadvertently end up paying for a Board Member’s cost, such as having
Board Members pay a month in advance.

Board Member Brummett made a motion to allow Board Members to obtain health, dental and

vision insurance through the District’s health insurance pool, at the Board Member’s own cost.
Board Member Gilboy seconded the motion, The motion passed unanimously.

Discussion followed as to qualifying events that would allow enrollment outside of the “hire”
date or during open enrollment. Board Member Gilboy asked if the Board Members would be
included in the experience rating. Administrative Manager Elliott responded that they would be
included in the overall experience rating. She asked for clarification regarding the time frame for
starting coverage.

Board Member Brummett made a motion to start this change effective July 1, 2021. Board

Member Gilboy seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

HEALTH INSURANCE PLANS - Discussion and possible approval to provide multiple
health insurance plan optiens to District employees, rather than just one plan.
Administrative Manager Elliott stated that the insurance pool offers five different plans;
however, the District has only offered one plan. She stated that the proposal is to offer all of the
plans to the employees, keeping the overall cost the same. She explained that the employee
would pay any additional costs. She stated that there are two plans that are not high-deductible
plans (as the District offers now); therefore, employees who choose one of these plans would not
qualify for the HSA contribution by the District. However, the funds the District normally
contributes to an employee’s HSA could be re-allocated towards the premium for more
expensive plans. Discussion followed regarding the logistics of the plans chosen by individual



Regular Meeting 03-23-21 Page 5of 6

employees. Chief Johnson stated that this information would be discussed with Labor.
Administrative Manager Elliott stated that they would make sure that this would not resultin a
reduction in benefits.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve providing alternate health insurance plans to
District employees effective July 1, 2021, contingent on Labor being in agreement. Board

Member Kaempfe seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

PURCHASE ORDER - Discussion and possible approval of a purchase order to Verde Sol-
Air to replace a HVAC unit at Station 31 for approximately $6,750. Chief Johnson stated
that he reviewed the quotes, and they are comparable. He stated that the District was worked
with the low bidder previously and has had a good experience with them.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve the purchase order to replace the HVAC unit
#3 at Station 31, to the lowest responsible bidder, Verde Sol-Air in the amount of $6,750 from

Capital. Board Member Brummett seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

PURCHASE ORDER -Discussion and possible approval to purchase wildland personal
protection equipment and other supplies from the Arizona Department of Forestry and
Fire Management for approximately $6,900. Engineer Thrman stated that the purchase will
result in the account being over-budget. He based his budget on what was done prior to him
taking over the Wildland Division. He stated that he did not have time to inventory what
personnel had and needed. He noted that a hose to purchase is not needed at this time and these
funds can offset the cost of the personal protective equipment (PPE) that personnel need. He
stated that the division is over-budget because they were deployed to wildland fires so often
during the fiscal year; therefore, they had more costs, approximately $20,000 over. He stated that
the more they are deployed, the more money is made by the District and the majority of the costs
will be reimbursed. He asked to spend the money in order to outfit full-time personnel with the
proper in-District PPE. Board Member Gilboy verified that the funds will come out of the
Wildland Account.

Board Member Brummett made a motion to approve the purchase of wildland personal
protection equipment and other supplies from the Arizona Department of Forestry and Fire

Management for approximately $6.900 including tax. Board Member Kaempfe seconded the
motion. The motion passed unanimously.

P-CARDS - Discussion and possible approval of automated payments for the District’s
purchasing cards (P-Cards) through National Bank. Administrative Manager Elliott
explained that the purchasing cards allows the District to restrict types and amounts of purchases
of personnel. She explained that each month each card user logs into the system and codes
charges. She stated that the process has frequently caused delays in payment, which has caused
issues such as hitting the account limit so new purchases are denied. She stated that the solution
is to enroll in autopay so the account is paid off in a timely way eliminating purchasing
restrictions, so fuel and other items can be purchased. She noted instances where employees have
had to purchase items using their personal credit card; autopay would eliminate this.
Administrative Manager Elliott stated that staff proposes having autopay pay monthly. She stated
that staff would still make sure all accounting is done and funds are accounted for.



Regular Meeting 03-23-21 Page 6 of 6

Board Member Gilboy stated that she likes it when credit cards shut off when the limit is
reached. However, she noted that having three days to pay the bill is unrealistic and she is
willing to look at a monthly auto payment if that is necessary. It was noted that the entire credit
limit is $50,000 and that large purchases are being paid via purchasing cards to save staff time
and because the District receives cash back for purchases made on the cards.

Board Member Gilboy noted that for larger purchases, the vendors can wait for a check; these
purchases do not need to go on a card.

Battalion Chief Chambliss explained how and why wildland expenses are charged to a
purchasing card. Administrative Manager Elliott noted that wildiand costs charged to the cards
were higher than normal due to COVID-19 and there not being any base camps. She added that
there is nothing stopping the District from cutting a check during the month and depositing it if
expenses are getting high.

Discussion followed regarding the amount of cash back the District receives from using the
purchasing cards. It was noted that the District received over $1,500 so far; however, the cards
were not utilized for the entire the year. Board Member Brummett stated that it is not right for an
employee to have to use a personal card. Board Member Kaempfe agreed that big transactions
should not be charged to the card.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve automated payments for the District’s National
Bank purchasing cards on monthly basis and that large purchases, over $5.000, are paid via

check. not charged t urchasing card, and th follow-up on wh rcen e District
receives back from the bank for using the cards. Board Member Brummett seconded the motion.

Discussion followed as to purchases charged to the card. The motion passed unanimously,

FY2021-2022 BUDGET-Presentation and discussion of the FY2021-2022 preliminary
budget information. Administrative Manager Elliott stated that the first meet and confer
meeting is scheduled for the following Thursday. She reported that proposed costs have been
requested from all divisions.

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS - A listing of items to be placed on a future agenda. No items
were listed.

ADJOURNMENT. With no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 6:25

Approved:

Ken Bistiop, Board Chairman

D31 Peck, Board Cléck



